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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 
Located on a flat plain along the Chippewa River, the Flambeau Mission 
Church is a gable roofed clapboard building with a projecting vestibule 
and bell tower in the gable end. Built in 1881, the rectangular church 
building has a one story clapboard gabled rear section, once used as the 
priest's quarters. In 1884 a two-story rectangular monastery was added, 
cross-gabled to the church.

Windows in the church are 6 over 6 sash, while the windows in the rear 
addition are 4 over 4. Most glass panes are original. The square bell 
tower was added circa 1903 and features small sash windows at the entry. 
A small rosette window embellishes the tower and an octagonal spire tops 
the closed belfry. The spire and the roof on the priest's quarters are 
covered with wood shingles. The rest of the building was covered with 
asphalt shingles circa 1945. All portions rest on fieldstone foundations.

The nave of the church has a vaulted ceiling, and walls feature wainscots. 
A balcony supported by chamfered wood columns is at one end of the nave, 
above the entrance. The decorative woodwork at the balcony is the only 
ornate woodwork in the building, as all window and door frames are very 
simple. Because of the materials used, it is suspected that the balcony 
was constructed at the same time as the bell tower (1903).

Walls and ceilings are painted and the sanctuary is panelled with imitation 
wood sheetboard. The altar and pews were formerly in St. Charles Catholic 
Church at Chippewa Falls, but were brought here in 1945. The original 
plain wood pews are still used in the balcony. The original wood floor of 
the church has been covered with linoleum. With the exception of these 
changes, the church is virtually unaltered since its construction.

The original priest's quarters, now used as the sacristy, has been 
panelled with the type of sheetboard used in the sanctuary. Little remains 
of any interior woodwork in this wing. The 1884 addition has only been 
slightly altered. Originally, the two stories were divided into four rooms 
each. A wall on the lower level has been removed, creating three rooms. 
Doors, windows and the wide plank floor are original. This first level is 
now used for church socials. All the woodwork, plastering and hardware on 
the second floor is original. Since this level was never used as planned, 
it has survived in a completely unchanged state since 1884. It is now used 
for storage.

A cemetery located just east of the church contains the graves of dozens of 
early parishioners, including those of many American Indian converts. The 
latter are marked by plain wood crosses, while the white settlers' graves 
bear stone markers. The earliest of these tombstones is dated 1864. Most 
stones date from the 1800's and 1890's.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Flambeau Mission Church is significant as one of the few Amerind 
missionary churches remaining in the Chippewa Valley, and as the oldest 
church in Rusk County. It is one of the few structures surviving from the 
county's oldest pioneer settlement. The church represents an early 
religious vernacular structure and is significant for its plain craftsmanship 
and relatively unaltered state.

White settlement of the Flambeau^community, located near the confluence of 
the Chippewa and Flambeau Rivers, began in 1847 and developed in the 1860's. 
with the logging explorations in the Chippewa Valley. The Daniel Shaw 
Lumber Company farm was a key stopping place along the river and on the 
stagecoach line from Chippewa Falls. Franciscan missionaries moved into the 
area about this time, with one of their mission stops being a Chippewa Indian 
village about a mile and a half east of the Shaw farm. Here, they also 
administered to the needs of the numerous French-Canadian Catholics in the 
area.

Whether a mission building existed at the Flambeau mission site before 1881 
is uncertain. In that year the present church building was erected near the 
Indian village, under the supervision of Franciscan missionary Father 
Chrysostom Verwyst and Father Casimir, who directed Indian missions in the 
northwest region.

The mission was built by residents of the Flambeau farm area and all 
materials used were locally supplied. Local builder Thomas Orthman did much 
of the carpentry and plaster work, as he later did on the monastery addition 
in 1884. Decoration was minimal and simple, in keeping with the missionary 
spirit. All windows are plain glass, and the altar, wood trim, and homemade 
pews are simply crafted. Door hinges are plain. A bell was placed on a 
stand in front of the church, remaining there until it was moved to the 
belfry built by Gust Dakota in 1903. A balcony was added at this same time, 
and its woodwork is a bit more decorative.

1. St. Mary's Church records
2. Ibid.
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Significance (continued)

At the church dedication ceremonies one missionary noted that about 70 Chippewa 
Indians were confirmed. He wrote: "(Here) is one of their (the Franciscans) 
largest and most promising flocks and here they soon hope to locate a monastery 
of their order." That monastery building remains nearly completely intact today. 
However, it was never used as a monastery, as the Indian settlement dwindled and 
the area residents became mostly transient loggers. Traveling missionaries used 
the addition for living space, and in the early 1900 f s a local schoolteacher used 
the building for Catholic religious instruction.

In about 1910 the Flambeau settlement, once bustling with 11 saloons, began to 
dwindle as logging operations decreased. Since destruction of the 1864 Shaw farm 
two years ago, the Mission Church is one of the few surviving structures of the 
Flambeau community. Although the Flambeau Mission has never become a full-time 
parish (Masses in the summer only)j a dedicated group of parishioners has kept the 
building well-maintained, with only minor alterations.

3. Chippewa County, Wisconsin Past and Present, S.J. Clarke Publishing Co., 1913
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